BOARD of POLICE COMMISSIONERS

of the

City of Portsmouth, N.H.



Chairman John F. Golumb...Commissioner Gerald W. Howe... Commissioner Brenna Cavanaugh

"Providing Citizen Oversight of Your Police Department"

NOTICE: The Police Commission has a dedicated phone number at the police department. You can call the Commissioners at 603-610-7471 and leave a message regarding your concerns, along with your name and a telephone number. The Commissioners will be advised of your message and someone will return your call in a timely fashion.

PUBLIC NOTICE OF POLICE COMMISSION MEETING

DATE:

16 April, 2014 (Wednesday)

LOCATION &

TIME:

Public Session - 6:00 p.m., Eileen Dondero Foley Council

Chambers, Portsmouth City Hall

The Board anticipates meeting for a non-public session as appropriate under RSA 91-A.

- I. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u>
- II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- III. ACCEPTANCE OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON:

March 19th, 2014

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT

Individual comment is limited to three minutes.

- V. <u>UNFINISHED BUSINESS:</u> None.
- VI. NEW BUSINESS:

A. POLICE COMMISSION:

1. Personnel items that require action.

B. CHIEF OF POLICE:

- 1. Recognition of Novell Iron Works for their funding of K-9 "Steel".
- 2. Recognition of Sergeant Keaveny, Detective Bernier, and Detective Study for their investigative work following the death of Joshua Krantz, who died after an assault at The Page bar and restaurant.
- 3. Recognition of Sergeant Roth, K-9 Officer Pearl, and officers Widerstrom, and Blanding for their problem-oriented, strategic response to rising heroin use and overdose deaths.
- 4. Recognition of Officer McCarthy for his unique response to an out-of-control juvenile situation.
- 5. Grants & Donations:
 - a. A grant in the amount of \$35,000 from the Dept. of Justice in support of the Victim/Witness Advocate position at the Portsmouth Police Department.
 - b. Grants as follows from the State Highway Safety Agency:
 - \$6,864 for "Portsmouth DWI/DUI Patrols"
 - \$6,864 for (2) Sobriety Checkpoints in Portsmouth
 - \$5,148 for "Portsmouth Pedestrian Patrols"
 - \$5,148 for "Portsmouth Red Light Running Patrols"
 - \$5,148 for "Portsmouth Enforcement Patrols"
 - \$2,808 for "Join the Clique" seat belt campaign
 - c. A donation in the amount of \$300 from Mr. Jason Page for two tuition scholarships to the Explorer Cadet Academy.
 - d. A donation in the amount of \$300 from Mr. & Mrs. David Brown for two tuition scholarships to the Explorer Cadet Academy.
- 6. Letters of Thanks & Appreciation from Outside the Department:
 - a. Letter of Thanks from Chief Michael Begonis of the Wilmington, MA police department for the work of Det. Sergeant John Peracchi, Detective Rochelle Jones, Officer Erik Widerstrom and Officer Garret Drew for going "out of their way" to assist the Wilmington Police Department in securing a Search Warrant and apprehending Robert Reinhart, who was charged with multiple counts of larceny in Massachusetts. Important evidence was also recovered which led to the identity of additional victims.
 - b. Several notes of thanks to ACO Bonnie Robinson for her joint presentation on her work with animals to the UNH ARA program.

C. PATROL DIVISION:

This report is included in the commission packet.

Police Commission Agenda Monthly Meeting 16 April, 2014 Page 3 of 3

VII. COURT OFFICE REPORT

This report is included in the commission packet.

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS/OTHER BUSINESS

IX. <u>NEXT REGULAR MEETING:</u> The next monthly police commission meeting will take place on May 21st, 2014 in the Eileen Dondero Foley Council Chambers, Portsmouth City Hall.. The public session will start at 6:00 p.m.

NOTICE to members of the public who are hearing impaired: If you wish to attend a meeting and need assistance, please contact Human Resources Director Dianna Fogarty at 431-2000 ext. 7270 prior to the scheduled meeting. Thank You.

Kathe Levesque

(Posted on 8 April, 2014)

Brenna Cavanaugh

Clerk of the Commission

PORTSMOUTH POLICE COMMISSION MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19TH, 2014 MEETING

6:00 p.m. Public Session - Wm. Mortimer Conference Room, PPD

John F. Golumb, Chairman Gerald W. Howe Brenna Cavanaugh

I. CALL TO ORDER: The March 19th, 2014 monthly police commission public session was called to order at 5:06p.m. in the William Mortimer Conference Room at the Portsmouth Police Department.

Action: Commissioner Cavanaugh moved to go into non-public session for the purpose of discussing personnel matters as per RSA 91-A:3, II.

Seconded by Commissioner Howe.

On a Roll Call Vote: The board voted unanimously to go into non-public session at 5:06p.m.

Chairman Golumb called the public session back to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Wm. Mortimer Conference Room.

Present during the public session: Commissioners Golumb, Howe, and Cavanaugh, Chief Stephen DuBois, Deputy Chief Corey MacDonald, Admin. Manager Karen Senecal, Elizabeth Dinan, reporter for The Herald.

- **II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:** Deputy MacDonald led the Pledge of Allegiance.
- III. ACCEPTANCE OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON:

February 19th, 2014 Budget Hearing, February 19th regular monthly meeting.

Action: Commissioner Howe moved to accept the minutes and place one copy on file.

Seconded by Commissioner Cavanaugh.

On a Roll Call Vote: The Board voted unanimously to accept the minutes and place one copy on file.

- IV. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION: None.
- V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None
- VI. NEW BUSINESS:

Personnel Items that require action:

Action Commissioner Cavanaugh moved to appoint Det. McCain to Master Patrol Officer Status.

Seconded by Commissioner Howe.

On a Roll Call Vote: The board voted unanimously to appoint Detective McCain to Master Patrol Officer status, effective on his tenyear anniversary date.

Action: Commissioner Cavanaugh moved to appoint Officer Christina Meyers to Master Patrol Officer status.

Seconded by Commissioner Howe.

On a Roll Call Vote: The board voted unanimously to appoint Officer Meyer to Master Patrol Officer status, effective on her ten-year anniversary date.

A. CHIEF OF POLICE:

1. Financial Report – Admin. Manager Karen Senecal talked about the outside work rate. She explained our current rate covers our costs. Karen asked the commission if they wished to consider a forward projection, since the commission will be in contract negotiations this year. She said she would bring the calculation forward and have that information available at the next commission meeting. The current costs will continue until the contract is negotiated. Commissioner Howe felt we should leave the rate where it is, as it would be impossible to forecast what the final contract will look like. He said several years ago contractors working in the city asked the commission to give them 60 days notice if the rate was going to change so they could reflect the changes in their bids for future work. There was some discussion on certain legal aspects of rate changes.

Karen said she would give the commission the historical information and a breakdown of the costs. She also briefed the commission on the status of current expenditures and the percent expended vs. where we should be at this point in the fiscal year. While we are still tracking under budget, the gap is narrowing as we move toward the last quarter. Gasoline is about 81% expended, which is high for this point in the fiscal year.

Commissioner Cavanaugh asked about the status of the scheduling software, and Chief DuBois asked Karen about the Crime View software. Karen said both systems should be online within the next month.

Commissioner Cavanaugh asked about the status of the fleet conversion to the new SUVs. The Chief and Deputy explained how the new vehicles are being phased in.

Chief DuBois asked about the range rebuild, and Karen updated everyone. She said hopefully next week, we will have the ship date.

Commissioner Cavanaugh asked for an update on the rat problem. Karen said the rats are still quite active and may have regained some ground over the winter. The recent 'find' was the biggest rat she has seen yet.

B. PATROL SERVICES DIVISION

This report is contained in the commission's packet.

D. CITY PROSECUTOR REPORT

This report is contained in the commission's packet.

VII. MISCELLANEOUS OTHER BUSINESS:

Action: Commissioner Howe moved to accept the division reports and place one copy on file.

Seconded by Commissioner Cavanaugh.

On a Roll Call Vote: The board voted unanimously to accept the division reports and place one copy on file.

Commissioner Cavanaugh asked Deputy MacDonald to update them on what the department is doing to combat the heroin problem. The Deputy said that in addition to making arrests and continuing to pursue

aggressive enforcement, we are assembling a collaboration of regional stakeholders to develop a two-pronged approach. We are seeking to hold a one-day comprehensive education day. We are not going to arrest anyone that comes forward and attends this event. We hopefully are going to get some stuff off the street, and equip families that are dealing with addicted spouses, children, etc. with the resources available to help them. This is a good idea for the police department because the approach of Problem Oriented Policing is to kick the legs out from under the crime by addressing what drives it. Drugs drive crime here in Portsmouth - from car break-ins and burglaries, to shoplifting and assault violence.

Part two of the approach is a public service announcement that will be different from traditional law enforcement messages. This will be a resource focused, therapeutic type of approach. Friday will be the kick off to put all of this together.

There being no further business before the commission, the chair asked for a motion to adjourn.

Action: Commissioner Cavanaugh moved the March 19th, 2014 monthly police commission be adjourned.

Seconded by Commissioner Howe.

On a Roll Call Vote: The board voted unanimously in favor of the motion at 6:25 p.m.

VIII. NEXT MEETING: WEDNESDAY, April 16th in the Eileen Dondero Foley Council Chambers, Portsmouth City Hall. The public session will begin at 6:00 p.m.

Kathe

Respectfully Submitted By Kathleen Levesque. Executive Assistant Reviewed By Commissioner Cavanaugh. Clerk of the Commission

Brenna Cavanauah

Frime augh



City of Portsmouth, N.H.

Police Department



Corey F. MacDonald
DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

Sergeant David Keaveny
Detective Kristyn Rogers-Bernier
Detective Scott Study
PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT
3 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Commendation

Dear Dave, Kristyn, and Scott:

When we were notified by the Dover Police Department that Mr. Joshua Krantz had died in their town, and his death was possibly linked to an assault that occurred the night before at The Page sports bar in Portsmouth, you had little else to go on when you started your investigation.

On a typical Friday night, hundreds of customers passed through the doors of The Page. You began by interviewing their staff. Initially, none of the staff was able to provide any direct knowledge of an altercation or assault. Then a staff person provided the name of a customer who may have been a witness. From there more interviews developed and a suspect was identified. The suspect, who had a history of violence, was located but refused to speak with you. This did not slow down your investigation.

The results of your work would later determine that Zachary O'Neill waited up to an hour after he had a drink spilled on him before attacking Joshua Krantz on the dance floor. And although there was no video showing Zachary O'Neill being splashed with a drink, or delivering the blows that ended Joshua Krantz's

life, your tenacious and meticulous investigation proved that Zachary O'Neill caused the death of Joshua Krantz.

On January 16th, after hundreds of hours of police work, 19 witness interviews and the analysis of 18 pieces of evidence, Zachary O'Neill entered the Rockingham Superior Court and pled guilty to Manslaughter. He will spend up to 22 years in prison for causing the death of an innocent man. That sentence, and the closure it helps to bring to the family and friends of Mr. Krantz, was made possible by your diligence and dedication.

You are receiving this Letter of Commendation because you have distinguished yourselves by your exceptional service in a duty of great responsibility and importance to this community, clearly above that which would be normally expected, so as to bring credit to the Department and serve as an inspiration to fellow officers. It is my pleasure to publicly recognize your work.

Very truly yours,

PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police



Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

City of Portsmouth, N.H.

Folice Department



Corey F. MacDonald DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

Sergeant Christopher Roth PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT 3 Junkins Avenue Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Recognition

Dear Chris:

In late January of this year, the city experienced its share of the sudden epidemic of heroin-related tragedies sweeping the northeast. In Portsmouth, it came in the form of several overdoses, including one death. As a result of these incidents, you made it a point to have a direct and meaningful conversation with your shift about the importance of combating this issue at the patrol level. You gave clear guidance on proactive interdiction, and you emphasized the urgency of our response. You delivered your concerns and ideas to every member of your evening and swing shifts.

Your approach included changing the strategy of patrolling and a shift of focus to goal-oriented policing — namely, the discovery and removal of heroin and any other illegal drugs from the streets of this city. Your dialogue led officers to 'run with the ball', building on your direction and formulating ideas of their own. As a result, a constant stream of intelligence was passed on from street officers to detectives. The emphasis on traffic enforcement, stops, surveillance and heavy patrolling of specific areas of the city in an orchestrated manner resulted in 21 arrests, including 10 for possession of narcotics. This concerted effort led to an unprecedented amount of information being collected and shared with other departments and agencies.

Chris, your passion to fix a serious problem set a chain of events in motion that impacted this city for good. The success of your officers and the resulting investigations are a testament to your leadership, and as a department, we are proud of you.

Thank you for this excellent police work!

Very truly yours,

PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police



City of Portsmouth, N.H.

Police Department



Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

Corey F. MacDonald DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

K-9 Officer Scott Pearl
PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT
3 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Recognition

On January 21st and 22nd of this year, this city was hard hit with evidence of the growing epidemic of the presence of heroin, in the form of several overdose incidents that included one person dying. As a result of these incidents and a conversation with the shift commander, several patrol officers on the evening shift began searching for new ways to battle this invasion; you are one of those officers.

Your efforts involved re-thinking patrol methods to come up with a new strategy. While other officers certainly maintained their vigilance during this time, you were a stand out, Scott. Your influence and positive outlook on this urgent task was refreshing and a true reflection of a professional law enforcement officer. Your spirit led to other officers taking on the same challenges, as they responded to your inspiration and demeanor. This activity led to a number of traffic stops, high intensity patrolling and intelligence gathering.

As a result of your work and that of other officers, there were 21 arrests made that were direct results of this shift initiative; 10 of those arrests also resulted in the removal of some form of illegal drugs from the street. While you were not necessarily present for each of these arrests, your influence kept officers engaged and hyper-vigilant.

Scott, you are a true professional; always seeking out and finding the small oddities on your beat and investigating them to the fullest, all the while maintaining the rigorous training and qualifications standards of your K-9 and your specialty unit. The simple fact 1s, you constantly do your duty and uphold your oath to this city's citizens and visitors. I am thankful for this opportunity to once again publicly acknowledge your outstanding work.

Very truly yours, PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police



City of Hortsmouth, N.H.

Police Department



Corey F. MacDonald DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

Officer Erik Widerstrom
PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT
3 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Recognition

Dear Erik:

On January 21st and 22nd of this year, this city was hard hit with evidence of the growing epidemic of the presence of heroin, in the form of several overdose incidents that included one person dying. As a result of these incidents and a conversation with the shift commander, several patrol officers on the evening shift began searching for new ways to battle this invasion; you are one of those officers.

Your efforts involved re-thinking patrol methods to come up with a new strategy. While other officers certainly maintained their vigilance during this time, you were a stand out, Erik. You constantly searched for opportunities to conduct traffic stops and searches on known suspects and potential suspects. This activity led to a number of traffic stops, high intensity patrolling and intelligence gathering.

As a result of your work and that of other officers, there were 21 arrests made that were direct results of this shift initiative; 10 of those arrests also resulted in the removal of some form of illegal drugs from the street.

Erik, your professionalism and dedication to your oath to protect this city's citizens and visitors are to be commended. I am happy to have this opportunity to publicly recognize your work.

Very truly yours,

PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police



City of Portsmouth, N.H.

Police Department



Corey F. MacDonald DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

Officer Steven Blanding
PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT
3 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Recognition

Dear Steve:

On January 21st and 22nd of this year, this city was hard hit with evidence of the growing epidemic of the presence of heroin, in the form of several overdose incidents that included one person dying. As a result of these incidents and a conversation with the shift commander, several patrol officers on the evening shift began searching for new ways to battle this invasion; you are one of those officers.

Your efforts involved re-thinking patrol methods to come up with a new strategy. While other officers certainly maintained their vigilance during this time, you were a stand out, Steve. You were always coming up with ideas and new ways to do things, and this influenced and energized other officers. This activity led to a number of traffic stops, high intensity patrolling and intelligence gathering.

As a result of your work and that of other officers, there were 21 arrests made that were direct results of this shift initiative; 10 of those arrests also resulted in the removal of some form of illegal drugs from the street.

Steven, your professionalism and dedication to your oath to protect this city's citizens and visitors are to be commended. I am happy to have this opportunity to publicly recognize your work.

Very truly yours, PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT

_

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police



City of Portsmouth, N.H.

Police Department



Stephen J. DuBois CHIEF OF POLICE

Corey F. MacDonald DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

16 April, 2014

Officer Kevin McCarthy PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT 3 Junkins Avenue Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: Letter of Recomendation

Dear Kevin:

On February 27th of this year, you responded to a call for an out-of-control, violent juvenile. You were quick to recognize the address from previous calls for service, having already developed a plan of action should you find yourself responding to the location in the future. As a result, you were able to very quickly put additional units on notice and stage the fire department as well.

Once on scene, you immediately began actions to quell the situation, which required you to physically restrain the juvenile in a type of restraining hug. You then began speaking softly and calmly, working to bring the situation to a controllable level. Though the youth continued to profanely rage on, you steadily maintained your approach. This required you to continuously hold and carry the young person from the scene into an ambulance, through the ambulance ride, and for the duration of the time at the hospital. This required no small measure of strength and stamina.

Kevin, your actions that day were so compassionate and professional that hospital personnel had high praise for what they witnessed. Eventually, your actions calmed the youth and provided an opportunity for hospital personnel to attend to him without further restraints or force. Other options exist that would have required a rougher approach from you as the responding officer. In your compassion, you chose the more difficult response. You exhibited great control, restraint, patience and understanding.

Your methods represented the Portsmouth Police Department at its best, exposing those around you to the meaning of our motto: "Commitment – Compassion – Community".

My thanks to the Commission for this opportunity to publicly highlight your outstanding police work.

Very truly yours, Portsmouth Police Department

Stephen J. DuBois, Chief of Police

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

SSEPH A. FOSTER ATTORNEY GENERAL 33 CAPITOL STREET CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397



ANN M. RICE
DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

February 28, 2014

REC'D MAR 7 - 2014

Stephen J. Dubois, Chief Portsmouth Police Department 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801

Re: 2014 Violence Against Women Federal Grant Program - Award # 2014W042

Dear Chief Dubois:

I am pleased to inform you that grant funding in the amount of \$35,000 has been approved by the Governor and Executive Council to your agency. The time period for this award is from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

Enclosed please find the original grant award that will need to be signed and dated by you and returned to this office, retaining a copy for your records. We have also enclosed a copy of your expenditure report for your review and initial financial expenditure filing. Expenditure reports must be submitted to this office on a quarterly basis, with a due date of 15 days beyond the previous quarter. For example, with an award that begins Jan. 1- the first quarterly expenditure report will be due on April 15th. Expenditure reports submitted beyond the due date are considered out of compliance. A Microsoft Excel spreadsheet version of the expenditure report designed to facilitate your reporting is available from this office upon your request.

Should you have any questions concerning you grant project, please contact Susan Dearborn of the Grants Management Unit by email at susan.dearborn@doi.nh.gov or by phone at 271-8091.

Congratulations and thank you for your efforts on behalf of victims of violent crimes in New Hampshire.

Sincerely,

Jøseph A. Foster

Attorney General

JAF/shd enclosure Mailed 5192 d (0)27 3/14/14

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE GRANT AWARD Agency Name: Portsmouth Police Department Vendor No.: 159594-B001 Program Name: PD Victim Assistant Amount \$ 35,000.00 Grant Start Date: 01/01/2014 State Grant Number: 2014W087 Grant End Date: 12/31/2014 Federal Grant Number: 2013-WF-AX-0016 Appropriation No.: 02-20-20-201510-5017-072-500574 Head of Agency Project Director Fiscal Officer Stephen J. Dubois Kristin Maki Karen Senecal 3 Junkins Drive 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth Police Chief V/W Advocate 3 Junkins Ave. 3 Junkins Drive 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 603-610-7464 Fortsmouth NH 03801 803-610-7464 Fortsmouth NH 03801 803-610-7465 Fortsmouth NH 03801 803-610-7466 Fortsmouth Police Chief Fortsmouth NH 03801 803-610-7466 Fortsmouth Police Chief Fo	ISTATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE							
Agency Name: Portsmouth Police Department Vendor No.: 159594-B001 Agency Name: Portsmouth Police Department Amount: \$ 35,000.00 Grant Start Date: 01/01/2014 State Grant Number: 2013-WF-AX-0016 Appropriation No: 02-20-20-201510-5017-072-500574 Head of Agency Project Director Fiscal Officer Stephen J Dubois Kristin Maki Karen Senecal 3 Junkins Drive 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth Police Chief Kristin Maki Karen Senecal 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 Federal Grant Name Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Agency United States Department of Justice Federal Agency United States Department of Justice Federal Agency Office on Violence Against Women Federal Agency United States Department of Justice Federal Federal Grant Name Violence Against Women Feder								
Agency Name: Portsmouth Police Department Vendor No.: 159594-B001 Program Name: PD Victim Assistant Amount \$35,000.00 Grant Start Date: 01/01/2014 State Grant Number: 2013-WF-AX-0016 Appropriation No.: 02-20-201510-5017-072-500574 Head of Agency Project Director Fiscal Officer Stephen J. Dubois Kristin Maki Karen Senecal 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Boureau/Office: Office	l –							
Program Name: PD Victim Assistant	I = -	7-7-6-1		15.7a - 1a - N1	450504 D004			
Grant Start Date: Grant End Date: 12/31/2014 12/31/2014 Federal Grant Number: 2013-WF-AX-0016 Appropriation No: 02-20-20-201510-5017-072-500574 Head of Agency Head of Agency Stepnen J. Dubois Portsmouth Police Chief 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 B03-610-7572 Federal Grant Number: Portsmouth, NH 03801 B03-610-7572 Federal Grant Name Federal Grant	II 9		<u> </u>	<u> </u>				
Grant End Date: 12/31/2014 Federal Grant Number: 2013-WF-AX-0016 Appropriation No: 02-20-20-201510-5017-072-500574 Fiscal Officer Stephen J. Dubois Kristin Maki Karen Senecal Portsmouth Police Chief Jukins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth NH 03801 Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Requirements: NH Department of Justice Program Requirements:	[[1				
Appropriation No.: O2-20-20-20-1510-5017-072-500574 Head of Agency Project Director Fiscal Officer Stephen J. Dubois Portsmouth Police Chief Junkins Drive Junkins Drive Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 G03-610-7464 Federal Grant Name: Violence Against Women Act - 2013 United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Allowable activities Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Allowable activities Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Allowable activities Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and Special conditions Approval Program Agancy NH Department of Justice NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date J////7 Ja-4-20/4	li '							
Head of Agency Project Director Fiscal Officer Stephen J. Dubois Kristin Maki Karen Senecal Portsmouth Police Chief 3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 Bo3-610-7572 Bo3-610-7464 Federal Grant Name Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Grant Name United States Department of Justice Purpose of Grant DV/SA Victim Advocate Purpose of Grant DV/SA Victim Advocate Match Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program Income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and Special Conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Title Portsmouth Police Chief	<u> </u>				13-WF-AX-0016			
Stephen J. Dubois Portsmouth Police Chief 3 Junkins Drive 3 Junkins Drive 9 Portsmouth, NH 03801 803-610-7372 1 603-610-7464 Federal Grant Name Federal Agency. Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Portsmouth, NH 03801 603-610-7416	<u> </u>							
Portsmouth Police Chief 3 Junkins Drive 3 Junkins Drive 9 Junkins Drive 1 Sunkins Drive 1 Dots-Send	N		or					
3 Junkins Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801 Federal Grant Name: Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Agency: Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Allowable activities. Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth, NH 03801 603-610-7416 603-6		1						
Portsmouth, NH 03801 603-610-7572 Federal Grant Name: Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Agency: Bureau/Office: Office on Violence Against Women CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match Requirements: Match Requirements: Match Requirements: Match Requirements: Match Requirements: Match Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth, NH 03801 603-610-7416 603-61	Portsmouth Police Chief	V/W Advocate			. }			
Federal Grant Name: Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Grant Name: Violence Against Women Act - 2013 Federal Agency: United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women	3 Junkins Drive	3 Junkins Drive	9					
Federal Grant Name: Federal Grant Name: Federal Agency: Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date Jiii//† Violence Against Women Act - 2013 United States Department of Justice Vollence Against Women Justice Vollence Against Women Act - 2013 United States Department of Justice Vollence Against Women Adainst Justice Vollence Against Women Act - 2014 Violence Against Women Act - 2013 United States Department of Justice Vollence Against Women Adainst Justice Vollence Against Women Adainst Justice Vollence Against Women Act - 2014 Vollence Against Women Act - 2014	Portsmouth, NH 03801	Portsmouth, N	H 03801	603-610-7416				
Federal Agency: Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women 16.588 Data State Against Women 16.588 Data Step Program Advocate Data Stephen J. Dubois Date United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women 16.588 Data Stephen J. Dubois	603-610-7572	1603-610-7464						
Federal Agency: Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women 16.588 Data State Against Women 16.588 Data Step Program Advocate Data Stephen J. Dubois Date United States Department of Justice Office on Violence Against Women 16.588 Data Stephen J. Dubois	Federal Grant Name:	Violence Agair	st Women Act	- 2013				
Bureau/Office: CFDA Number: Office on Violence Against Women 16.588 Purpose of Grant: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: See signed Program Guidelines and Special Conditions. Match Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: allowable activities. Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agancy NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date JIII/17 3-4-2014	Federal Agency:	United States I	Department of .	Justice				
Purpose of Grant: DV/SA Victim Advocate Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program allowable activities. Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Farletra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3-4-20/4	Bureau/Office:	Office on Viole	nce Against W	omen				
Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 9////7 3-9-20/9	CFDA Number:		•		ļ			
Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 9////7 3-9-20/9								
Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 9////7 3-9-20/9								
Program Requirements: Match funds must be generated from program Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 9////7 3-9-20/9	Purpose of Grant:	DV/SA Victim	Advocate					
Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date Match funds must be generated from program program Program Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions NH Department of Justice Rosemary Faretra Title Director of Administration	,				Ì			
Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date Match funds must be generated from program program Program Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions NH Department of Justice Rosemary Faretra Title Director of Administration					ŀ			
Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date Match funds must be generated from program program Program Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions NH Department of Justice Rosemary Faretra Title Director of Administration								
Match Requirements: Program income Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency Name Stephen J. Dubois Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date Match funds must be generated from program program Program Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions NH Department of Justice Rosemary Faretra Title Director of Administration	Program Requirements	See signed Pro	ogram Guidelin	es and Special	Conditions			
Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1///7 3-4-20/4	, regram negativemen	000 o.gou	-9.4	oo ana opoola.	Sorial acris.			
Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1///7 3-4-20/4								
Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1///7 3-4-20/4					}			
Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1///7 3-4-20/4	Match Requirements:	Match funds m	ust be denerate	ed from program				
Reporting Requirements: Monthly or quarterly financial reports Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1///7 3-4-20/4				ou irom prograi	''			
Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3////7 3-4-20/4	ii	allowable activ	victoria.					
Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3////7 3-4-20/4								
Annual performance report and audit Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3////7 3-4-20/4	Paparting Requirements:	Monthly or all	rterly financial	enorte				
Adherance to State and Federal guidelines and special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3////7 3-4-20/4	meporing requirements.							
special conditions Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1/// 3-4-20/4	1							
Approval Program Agency NH Department of Justice Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3////7 3-4-20/4								
Name Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Date 3-4-2014	15		UNS	INTER-				
Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 31/1/17 3-4-20/4	Approval Program Ager	1CY		INH Debaumei	nt of Justice			
Stephen J. Dubois Rosemary Faretra Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 31/1/17 3-4-20/4		118		10	ZV 1 1			
Title Portsmouth Police Chief Director of Administration Date 3/1/1/4 3-4-20/4	Name			TOGONODU	Maudia			
Date 3/1/17 3-4-2014				Rosemary Faretra				
Date 3////† All terms of this grant award are not valid unless signed by both authorized parties	li			Director of Adr	ministration			
All terms of this grant award are not valid unless signed by both authorized parties	Date 3/1//14 3-4-2014							
g and a garaged particol.	All terms of this grant award are	not valid unless	signed by both	authorized par	ties.			

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

State Of New Hampshire ghway Safety Agency 78 Regional Drive, Building 2 Concord, NH 03301-8530

For HSA Use Only			
Date Received	Project Number		
March 24, 2014	#308-14A-045		
Date Approved	PSP and Task #		
March 24, 2014	14-11, 02		

			Bute Approve	_	1 Si tand I	abit //
			March 24,	2014	14-11, 02	
Part I						
1. Project Title			2. Type of App	olication (Check One)	
Portsmouth DWI/DUI Patrols			X Initial Revision Continua			
3. Applicant						
A. Name of Agency DI	JNS Number 0739767	06	B. Address of A	Agency		
Portsmouth Police Department	t		3 Junkins Aven			
			Portsmouth NH	I 03801-4	511	
C. Government Unit (Check O	me)		D. Name Addr	ess of Go	overnmental Unit	
State			City of Portsmo	outh		į
City/Town County			One Junkins Av			
Other (specify):	_		Portsmouth, NI	H 03801		!
-C-+			Functional Area	K8 - 41	0 Alcohol SAFETE	Δ_Ι ΙΙ
Contract Duration A. Contract Period			CFDA#	20.601	o medioi din ETE	I-EC
	March 1, 2014		Program Title		Traffic Safety & Dr	runk Driving Preven
Termination Date:	September 15, 2014		Funding Source		ll Highway Traffic S	<u> </u>
6. Description of Project (Desc	6. Description of Project (Describe in detail in Schedule A) and Source of Funds					
E	Budget (Provide itemiza	tion as called for	on Schedule B) as	nd Source	e of Funds	
Cost Category	Total Budget	Federal Budge	et Local Bud	dget	State Budget	Other Funds

Cost Category	Total Budget	Federal Budget	Local Budget	State Budget	Other Funds
a. Personnel Services	\$6,864.00	\$6,864.00			
b. Current Expense					
c. Equipment					
d Indirect Costs Audit					
e. Contractual Services					
f. Other					
Total Estimated Costs Including Non-Federal Share	\$6,864.00	\$6,864.00			

	meluding 1001-1 ederal Share	\$0,004.00	\$0,004.00		
	7. Local Benefit:				
Hill Control	is anticipated that the feder	eral share for local benefit will	be: <u>100% (\$6.864.0</u>	0)	

D	-	TI
Г	di l	

BUDGET AND PERSONNEL DATA	
e. Personnel Services (OVERTIME DWI PATROLS)	
alary: 24 patrols x 4 hours/patrol x \$55.00/hour \$5,280.00	
Payroll-related deductions: \$5,280.00 x 30 percent 1,584.00	\$6,864.00
*See Proposed Solution (page 3) for explanation of pay rates	
b. Current Expenses	
c. Equipment	
d. Indirect Costs and Audit Expense	
e. Contractual Services	
f. Travel Expenses	
Tatal	\$6.864.00
Total	\$0.804.00

Dart	H	I
rait	11	1

Acceptance of Conditions. It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this contract is subject to e regulations governing grant which have been furnished (or will be furnished upon request) to the applicant.

A. Project Director		
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
Stephen J. DuBois	Chief, Portsmouth Police Department	3 Junkins Avenue
		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number
x Jan		610-7572
		0.00 7.5.12
B. Authorized Official		
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
John P. Bohenko	Portsmouth City Manager Deruny	One Junkins Avenue
DAVID S ALLEN		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature 0		5) Telephone Number
lx N/ D/A		431-2000
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		731-2000

Part IV (For HSA Use Only)

1. Approval Date	2. Signature & Title
March 24, 2014	
3. Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement:	Lety M. Momson
\$6,864.00	Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator NH Highway Safety Agency

SCHEDULE A GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

Description of Project

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM/NEED: The City of Portsmouth is home to many restaurants, bars, shops, and businesses. Portsmouth is one of the oldest settlements of the United States. The area was first settled as Strawbery Banke in 1623, and is the sixth oldest town in the United States.

Portsmouth's history and numerous community events attract tens of thousands of people to an already congested downtown. Large crowds of people attend the Chowder Festival, The Annual Market Square Day, The Annual Taste of the Nation at Strawbery Banke, Fireworks, The Seacoast Jazz Festival, The Bow Street Fair (craft fair), The Folk and Acoustic Festival, The Arts Festival, and The Blues Festival.

The City of Portsmouth continues to grow as a major center of attraction for seacoast residents and tourists visiting the state. Driving while impaired continues to be a problem on roads traversing the City of Portsmouth. The night-life offered by the numerous bars and restaurants creates an atmosphere that encourages the drinking of alcoholic beverages. Despite joint efforts with the NH Bureau of Liquor Enforcement, over-serving is commonplace. The direct result is a high number of impaired drivers leaving the city in motor vehicles while under the influence of intoxicating liquor. This poses a severe safety risk to the motoring public. Presently in the City of Portsmouth there are 87 establishments that serve alcohol and 42 establishments that sell alcohol.

Many of the bars and restaurants are frequented by college students from UNH on Thursday night (promo nights) before they go home on Friday for the weekend. The majority of DWI/DUI arrests in Portsmouth occur on Thursday, Friday, Saturday and holidays between the hours of 9:00 PM-3:00 AM. Drinking and driving is also a problem on Thursday nights because many establishments have promotional nights that offer half price drinks to attract patrons.

1	
Year	DWI Arrests
2010	65
2011	64
2012	54

Although statistics show a decrease in DWI/DUI arrests over the last three years, this can, in part, be attributed to the fact that the Portsmouth Police Department has made a concerted effort to address the problem through conducting overtime patrols funded by the NH Highway Safety Agency. dditional funds are needed in order for the police department to continue to establish enforcement efforts. Without this continued effort, additional addicated enforcement will not be conducted and the infractions will surely increase.

PROPOSED SOLUTION; In an effort to combat the DWI problem, the Portsmouth Police Department will hire, on an off-duty basis, officers who have completed training in the identification of intoxicated drivers. These fully trained officers will conduct one-man DWI enforcement patrols (24 4-hour shifts) on those evenings (Thursday, Friday, Saturday, and holidays) and during those times (9:00 PM-3:00 AM) when the drunk driver is felt to be most prevalent. It is understood that one (1) overtime DWI/DUI patrol will be conducted during NHTSA's "Driver Sober or Get Pulled Over" mobilization scheduled for August 13-September 1, 2014. Primary emphasis will be placed on apprehending the drunk driver; however, adherence to all traffic laws, including the state's occupant protection law, will be monitored and enforced. It is understood that these patrols will be conducted on an overtime basis and officers will be paid at their overtime (1.5) rate for work exceeding their normal 40 hours per week. Part-time officers will be paid at their normal hourly rate.

ANTICIPATED RESULTS: The DWI enforcement campaign will increase law enforcement's ability to apprehend DWI/DUI offenders, as well as deterring many would-be drunk drivers from getting behind the wheel in the first place. The goal is to provide safe motoring to the public and to reduce the number of DWI/DUI-related crashes both within the city limits, as well as in bordering seacoast towns. In is anticipated that each four-hour patrol conducted will result in one (1) DWI/DUI arrest.

ADDITIONAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS: It is agreed that "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) will be completed for each patrol and submitted to the NH Highway Safety Agency along with requests for reimbursement.

New Hampshire's Child Passenger Safety law is a primary law. A driver should be stopped for violating RSA 265:107-a which requires that all vehicle occupants under the age of 18 riding in a motor vehicle must be restrained and properly fastened in a safety belt and children under the age of 6 must be restrained and properly secured in an approved child passenger safety seat. It is agreed that whenever a stop is made during a patrol supported by this agreement, action will be taken to enforce the state's child passenger safety law.

The recipient of these funds is encouraged to provide programs to encourage the use of safety belts by all drivers and passengers in motor vehicles U.S.C. 1200.11 (a)(d)) and to adopt and enforce seat belt use policies for employees operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned ticles when performing official business.

See attached Addenda for additional information that is hereby made a part of this contractual agreement.

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

State Of New Hampshire

For HSA Use Only

State Of New Hampshire ghway Safety Agency		Date Received Project Number					
78 Regional Drive, Building 2			March 24	4, 2014	#308-14	IA-046	
Concord, NH 03301-8530	Concord, NH 03301-8530			oved	PSP and T	PSP and Task #	
	March 24	4, 2014	14-11, 03				
Part I		,					
1. Project Title			2. Type of A	Application	(Check One)		
Portsmouth Sobriety Checkpo	pints (2)		X Initia Revis				
			Cone				
3. Applicant	IDICAL LA GEORGE		D A II	£ A			
A. Name of Agency D Portsmouth Police Departmen	UNS Number 07397670)6	B. Address 3 Junkins A				
Portsmouth Ponce Departmen	ıı		Portsmouth		-4511		
C. Government Unit (Check (One)		D. Name A	ddress of C	Sovernmental Unit		
State			City of Ports	smouth			
City/Town County			One Junkins	Avenue			
Other (specify):			Portsmouth,	NH 03801			
4-Contract Duration		 	Functional Ar	ea K8-4	10 Alcohol SAFETE	A-L U	
. Contract Period			CFDA#	20.60	1		
Start Date:	March 1, 2014		Program Title		-	runk Driving Preven	
Termination Date:	September 15, 2014		Funding Sour	ce Nation	nal Highway Traffic S	Safety Administratio	
6. Description of Project (Des	cribe in detail in Schedu	le A) and Source	of Funds				
	Budget (Provide itemiza	tion as called for	on Schedule B) and Sour	ce of Funds		
Cost Category	Total Budget	Federal Budge	et Local	Budget	State Budget	Other Funds	
a. Personnel Services	\$6,864.00	\$6,864	.00				
b. Current Expense							
c. Equipment						1	
d. Indirect Costs Audit							
e. Contractual Services							
f. Other							
Total Estimated Costs Including Non-Federal Share	\$6,864.00	\$6,864	4.00				
7. Local Benefit:							
is anticipated that the feder	eral share for local benefi	it will be: <u>100</u>	<u>% (\$6,864.00)</u>				

HS-4 -1-

BUDGET AND PERSONNEL DATA		
a. Personnel Services (OVERTIME SOBRIETY CHECKPOINTS) alary: 2 checkpoints x 8 officers x 6 hours/checkpoint x \$55.00/hour* Payroll-related deductions: \$5,280.00 x 30 percent *includes 1 OIC and 1 safety officer *See Proposed Solution (page 3) for explanation of pay rates	\$5,280.00 1,584.00	\$6,864.00
b. Current Expenses		
c. Equipment		
d. Indirect Costs and Audit Expense		
e. Contractual Services		
f. Travel Expenses		
Total		\$6,864.00

Part III <u>cceptance of Conditions.</u> It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this contract is subject to the regulations governing grant which have been furnished (or will be furnished upon request) to the applicant.

A. Project Director					
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address			
Stephen J. DuBois	Chief, Portsmouth Police Department	3 Junkins Avenue			
		Portsmouth, NH 03801			
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number			
x JCE		610-7572			
B. Authorized Official					
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address			
John P. Bohenko	Portsmouth City Manager , DミPJTロ	One Junkins Avenue			
DAVID S. ALLEN	\	Portsmouth, NH 03801			
4) Signature h		5) Telephone Number			
X IUCA U		431-2000			

Part IV (For HSA Use Only)

Part IV (FOR HSA Use Only)	
1. Approval Date	2. Signature & Title
March 24, 2014	
3. Federal Funds Obligated by this	
Agreement:	Vely Mil nomson
	(Lett. 1 / 15 dinise)
\$6,864.00	Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator
	NH Highway Safety Agency

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

State Of New Hampshire

For HSA Use Only Project Number

State Of New Hampshire ghway Safety Agency			Date Received		Project Nu	mber
Regional Drive, Building	2		March 24,	2014	#314-14A	-005
Concord, NH 03301-8530			Date Approved		PSP and Ta	
			March 24,	2014	14-07, 02	
Part I						
1. Project Title			2. Type of Appl	ication (Check	(One)	-
Portsmouth Pedestrian Patrol	s		X Initial Revision Continuat	ion		
3. Applicant						
	UNS Number 07397670)6	B. Address of A	gency	**************************************	
Portsmouth Police Departmen	nt		3 Junkins Avenu Portsmouth NH			
C. Government Unit (Check (One)		D. Name Addre	ss of Governm	iental Unit	
State X City/Town			City of Portsmou			
County			One Junkins Ave Portsmouth, NH			
Other (specify):			<u> </u>			
4 Contract Duration			Functional Area		n/Bicycle Safe	ety
. Contract Period				20.600		5.0
Start Date: Termination Date:	March 1, 2014 September 15, 2014				nunity Highwa way Traffic S	ly Safety afety Administratio
6. Description of Project (Des		le A) and Source	1			
	Budget (Provide itemiza	tion as called for	r on Schedule B) and	d Source of Fu	ınds	
Cost Category	Total Budget	Federal Budg			ite Budget	Other Funds
a. Personnel Services	\$5,148.00	\$5,148	.00			
b. Current Expense						
c. Equipment						***
d. Indirect Costs Audit				 		
e. Contractual Services					<u> </u>	
f. Other						
Total Estimated Costs Including Non-Federal Share	\$5,148.00	\$5,148	3.00		1	
7. Local Benefit:	eral share for local benef	it will be: <u>100</u>	% (\$5.148.00)			

BUDGET AND PERSONNEL DATA		-
Personnel Services (OVERTIME PEDESTRIAN PATROLS)		
alary: 18 patrols x 4 hours/patrol x \$55.00/hour	\$3,960.00	
Payroll-related deductions: \$3,960.00 x 30 percent	1,188.00	\$5,148.00
*See Proposed Solution (page 3) for explanation of pay rates		
b. Current Expenses		
c. Equipment		
d. Indirect Costs and Audit Expense		
e. Contractual Services		
e. Contractual Services		
f. Travel Expenses		
		i
Total		\$5,148.00
Part III		

cceptance of Conditions. It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this contract is subject to e regulations governing grant which have been furnished (or will be furnished upon request) to the applicant.

A. Project Director		
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
Stephen J. DuBois	Chief, Portsmouth Police Department	3 Junkins Avenue
		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number
x Scen		610-7572
B. Authorized Official		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
John P. Bohenko	Portsmouth City Manager DePuty	One Junkins Avenue
DAVID S. ALLEN		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number
x Mlh		431-2000

Part IV (For HSA Use Only)

1. Approval Date

March 24, 2014

3. Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement:

\$5,148.00

Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator NH Highway Safety Agency

SCHEDULE A GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

escription of Project

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM/NEED: The City of Portsmouth is home to many restaurants, bars, shops, and businesses. Portsmouth is one of the oldest settlements of the United States. The area was first settled as Strawbery Banke in 1623, and is the sixth oldest town in the United States.

The City of Portsmouth's history and numerous community events attract tens of thousands of people to an already congested downtown. Large crowds of people attend the Chowder Festival, the Annual Market Square Day, the Annual Taste of the Nation at Strawbery Banke, fireworks, the Seacoast Jazz Festival, the Bow Street Fair (craft fair), the Folk and Acoustic Festival, the Arts Festival, and the Blues Festival.

The Portsmouth Middle School is in close proximity to the downtown area. During the school year there are six early release days when the students are dismissed at 11:00 AM. Many of these students are unsupervised as they walk to the downtown area saturated with pedestrians who are "j-walking" and ignoring signage at crosswalks, as well as motorists not stopping for pedestrians using crosswalks. The problem of pedestrian violations occurs daily (Sunday through Saturday) and is prevalent between the hours of 6:00 AM and 9:00 PM Monday through Friday and on Saturday and Sundays from 11:00 AM-7:00 PM. Many people are visiting these stores, shops, or businesses from the time these shops open until they close. Business owners typically are getting their establishments ready for business during early morning hours and can be found crossing streets in Portsmouth early. During some of the major events (Chowder Festival, the Annual Market Square Day) vendors are setting up very early (6:00 AM) and a large influx of people (pedestrians) visit vendors throughout the day into the evening hours.

	MV Crashes
	Involving
Year	Pedestrians
2010	10
2011	10
2012	19

Pedestrian Violations

Year	Pedestrian Warnings	Pedestrian Summonses
2010	11	6
2011	2	2
2012	1	1

Although statistics show a decrease in pedestrian warnings and summonses over the last three years, this can, in part, be attributed to the fact that the Portsmouth Police Department has made a concerted effort to address the problem through conducting overtime patrols funded by the NH Highway Safety Agency. Additional funds are needed in order for the police department to continue to establish enforcement efforts. Without this continued effort, additional dedicated enforcement will not be conducted and the infractions will surely increase.

PROPOSED SOLUTION: In an effort to combat the problems being experienced with pedestrian violations, the Portsmouth Police Department will hire, on an off-duty basis, officers to work one-man overtime pedestrian enforcement patrols (18 4-hour shifts) on those days and during those times (Monday-Friday 6:00 AM-9:00 PM and Saturday and Sunday 11:00 AM-7:00 PM) when the violations are felt to be most prevalent. Adherence to all traffic laws, including the state's occupant protection law, will be monitored and enforced. It is understood that these patrols will be conducted on an overtime basis and officers will be paid at their overtime (1.5) rate for work exceeding their normal 40 hours per week. Part-time officers will be paid at their normal hourly rate.

ANTICIPATED RESULTS: Intense enforcement and visibility will result in a continuing perception that the Portsmouth Police Department takes pedestrian safety seriously. The goal is to increase the number of motor vehicle stops and to create a high visibility loyment effort at crosswalk locations. It is anticipated that for each four-hour patrol conducted that two (2) pedestrian summonses and four (4) warnings will be issued for pedestrian violations.

(over)

ADDITIONAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS: It is agreed that "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) will be completed for each patrol and submitted to the NH Highway Safety Agency along with requests for reimbursement.

New Hampshire's Child Passenger Safety law is a primary law. A driver should be stopped for violating RSA 265:107-a which requires that all vehicle occupants under the age of 18 riding in a motor vehicle must be restrained and properly fastened in a safety belt and hildren under the age of 6 must be restrained and properly secured in an approved child passenger safety seat. It is agreed that whenever a stop is made during a patrol supported by this agreement, action will be taken to enforce the state's child passenger safety law.

The recipient of these funds is encouraged to provide programs to encourage the use of safety belts by all drivers and passengers in motor vehicles (23 U.S.C. 1200.11 (a)(d)) and to adopt and enforce seat belt use policies for employees operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles when performing official business.

See attached Addenda for additional information that is hereby made a part of this contractual agreement.

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

		For HSA Use Only			
State Of New Hampshire ghway Safety Agency		Date Received		Project Nu	mber
78 Regional Drive, Building 2 Concord, NH 03301-8530		March 24,	2014	#315-14A	-121
Concord, IND 05301-8530		Date Approved	l	PSP and Ta	ask#
		March 24,	2014	14-03, 12	
Part I	_				
1. Project Title		2. Type of Appl	ication (Check	One)	,
Portsmouth Red Light Runing Patrols		X Initial			
3		Revision	.•		İ
		Continua	tion		
3. Applicant					
A. Name of Agency DUNS Number 073976	6706	B. Address of A	gency		
Portsmouth Police Department		3 Junkins Avenu			
		Portsmouth NH			
C. Government Unit (Check One)		D. Name Addre	ess of Governme	ental Unit	
State X City/Town		City of Portsmo			
County		One Junkins Avenue Portsmouth, NH 03801			
Other (specify):		Torustioudi, 1411			
Contract Duration		Functional Area	PT - Police Tra	affic Services	
A. Contract Period		CFDA#	20.600		
Start Date: March 1, 2014		Program Title State & Community Highway Safety			
Termination Date: September 15, 2014		Funding Source	National High	way Traffic S	afety Administratio
6. Description of Project (Describe in detail in Sche	edule A) and Source	e of Funds			
Budget (Provide item	ization as called for	on Schedule B) an	d Source of Fur	n d s	
Cost Category Total Budget	Federal Budg	et Local Bud	get Stat	e Budget	Other Funds
a. Personnel Services \$5,148.0	\$5,148	.00			
b. Current Expense					
c. Equipment					
d. Indirect Costs Audit					
e. Contractual Services					
f. Other					
Total Estimated Costs Including Non-Federal Share \$5,148.0	\$5,148	3.00			
7. Local Benefit:					
is anticipated that the federal share for local beau	nefit will be: 100	<u>% (\$5,148.00)</u>			:

T) 4	TT
Part	
1 au t	**

BUDGET AND PERSONNEL DATA	
R. Personnel Services (OVERTIME RED LIGHT RUNNING ENFORCEMENT)	
Salary: 18 patrols x 4 hours/patrol x \$55.00/hour \$3,960.00	
Payroll-related deductions: \$3,960.00 x 30 percent 1,188.00	\$5,148.00
*See Proposed Solution (page 3) for explanation of pay rates	
b. Current Expenses	
c. Equipment	
d Indirect Coats and Audit Evnance	-
d. Indirect Costs and Audit Expense	
e. Contractual Services	
f. Travel Expenses	
Total	\$5,148.00

Part III

ecceptance of Conditions. It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this contract is subject to be regulations governing grant which have been furnished (or will be furnished upon request) to the applicant.

A. Project Director		
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
Stephen J. DuBois	Chief, Portsmouth Police Department	3 Junkins Avenue
		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number
1 Cen		
$X \rightarrow C$		610-7572
B. Authorized Official		
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address
John P. Bohenko	Portsmouth City Manager	One Junkins Avenue
		Portsmouth, NH 03801
4) Signature		5) Telephone Number
X		431-2000

Part IV (For HSA Use Only)

1. Approval Date	2. Signature & Title
March 24, 2014	
3. Federal Funds Obligated by this	
Agreement:	Lety M. Thousan
\$5,148.00	Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator
75 ,1 10 .00	NH Highway Safety Agency

SCHEDULE A GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

Description of Project

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM/NEED: The City of Portsmouth is home to many restaurants, bars, shops, and businesses. Portsmouth is one of the oldest settlements of the United States. The area was first settled as Strawberry Banke in 1623 and is the sixth oldest town in the United States.

The City of Portsmouth's history and numerous community events attract tens of thousands of people to an already congested downtown. Large crowds of people attend the Chowder Festival, the Annual Market Square Day, the Annual Taste of the Nation at Strawberry Banke, fireworks, the Seacoast Jazz Festival, the Bow Street Fair (craft fair), the Folk and Acoustic Festival, the Arts Festival, and the Blues Festival.

Arterial ways throughout the City of Portsmouth handle a heavy volume of traffic. Motorists are not only residents, but also business travelers and tourists who are unfamiliar with the roadways and numerous traffic intersections guarded by both stop signs and traffic signal lights. Red light violators pose one of the most dangerous and hazardous situations for motorists and pedestrians. Lack of enforcement at intersections causes motorists to take risks and speed up to beat the red light creating the potential for crashes.

"Red light runners" are typically those motorists who are rushing to get to work on time, are trying to get to planned events or activities in Portsmouth, or going to the mall. The problem of "Red Light Running" occurs at intersections located throughout the City of Portsmouth Monday through Friday between the hours of 6:00-10:00 AM and evenings from 3:00-7:00 PM and on Saturday and Sunday from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM.

Year	Crashes at Intersections	Red Light Warnings	Red Light Summonses
2010	306	634	226
2011	248	477	84
2012	244	18	7

Although statistics show a decrease in red light summonses and warnings over the last three years, this can, in part, be attributed to the fact that the Portsmouth Police Department has made a concerted effort to address the problem through conducting overtime patrols funded by the NH Highway Safety Agency. Additional funds are needed in order for the police department to continue to established enforcement efforts. Vithout this continued effort, additional dedicated enforcement will not be conducted and the infractions will surely increase.

PROPOSED SOLUTION: In an effort to combat the problems being experienced with red light running/stop sign violations, the Portsmouth Police Department will hire, on an off-duty basis, up two officers to work two-man overtime enforcement patrols (18 4-hour shifts) on those days and during those times (Monday-Friday 6:00-10:00 AM and 3:00-7:00 PM and Saturday and Sunday 10:00 AM-5:00 PM) when the violations are felt to be most prevalent. Adherence to all traffic laws, including the state's occupant protection law, will be monitored and enforced. It is understood that these patrols will be conducted on an overtime basis and officers will be paid at their overtime (1.5) rate for work exceeding their normal 40 hours per week. Part-time officers will be paid at their normal hourly rate.

<u>ANTICIPATED RESULTS:</u> Intense enforcement and visibility will result in a continuing perception that the Portsmouth Police Department is aggressively enforcing these dangerous red light running violations.

The goal is to increase the number of motor vehicle stops and to create a high visibility effort throughout the city. It is anticipated that each four-hour patrol will result in a minimum of 8-10 summonses/warnings for traffic control device violations which will have a deterrent effect on other driving violations.

ADDITIONAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS: It is agreed that "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) will be completed for each patrol and submitted to the NH Highway Safety Agency along with requests for reimbursement.

New Hampshire's Child Passenger Safety law is a primary law. A driver should be stopped for violating RSA 265:107-a which requires that all vehicle occupants under the age of 18 riding in a motor vehicle must be restrained and properly fastened in a safety belt and children under the age of 6 must be restrained and properly secured in an approved child passenger safety seat. It is agreed that whenever a stop is made during a patrol supported by this agreement, action will be taken to enforce the state's child passenger safety law.

the recipient of these funds is encouraged to provide programs to encourage the use of safety belts by all drivers and passengers in motor hicles (23 U.S.C. 1200.11 (a)(d)) and to adopt and enforce seat belt use policies for employees operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles when performing official business.

See attached Addenda for additional information that is hereby made a part of this contractual agreement.

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

For HSA Use Only tate Of New Hampshire Date Received Project Number ighway Safety Agency 78 Regional Drive, Building 2 March 24, 2014 #315-14A-120 Concord, NH 03301-8530 PSP and Task # Date Approved March 24, 2014 14-03, 02 Part 1 2. Type of Application (Check One) 1. Project Title X Initial Portsmouth Enforcement Patrols Revision Continuation 3. Applicant DUNS Number 073976706 B. Address of Agency A. Name of Agency Portsmouth Police Department 3 Junkins Avenue Portsmouth NH 03801-4511 C. Government Unit (Check One) D. Name Address of Governmental Unit State City of Portsmouth X City/Town One Junkins Avenue County Portsmouth, NH 03801 Other (specify): Functional Area SC - Speed Control Contract Duration A. Contract Period CFDA# 20.600 Program Title March 1, 2014 State & Community Highway Safety Start Date: September 15, 2014 Funding Source Termination Date: National Highway Traffic Safety Administratio 6. Description of Project (Describe in detail in Schedule A) and Source of Funds Budget (Provide itemization as called for on Schedule B) and Source of Funds Cost Category Total Budget Federal Budget Local Budget State Budget Other Funds \$5,148.00 a. Personnel Services \$5,148.00 b. Current Expense c. Equipment d. Indirect Costs Audit e. Contractual Services f. Other **Total Estimated Costs** Including Non-Federal Share \$5,148.00 \$5,148.00 7. Local Benefit: is anticipated that the federal share for local benefit will be: 100% (\$5,148.00)

BUDGET AND PERSONNEL DATA					
	. Personnel Services (OVERTIME ENFORCEMENT PATROLS)				
Salary: 18 patrols x 4 hours/patrol x \$55.00		\$3,960.00			
Payroll-related deductions: \$3,960.00 x 30		1,188.00	\$5,148.00		
*See Proposed Solution (page 3) for explan	ation of pay rates				
b. Current Expenses					
-					
c. Equipment					
d. Indirect Costs and Audit Expense			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
d. Hidhoot costs and Hazar Superso					
e. Contractual Services					
f. Travel Expenses					
Total			\$5,148.00		
10001					
Part III					
Acceptance of Conditions. It is understood	and agreed by the undersigned that a grant re-	ceived as a result of	f this contract is subject to		
ne regulations governing grant which have	been furnished (or will be furnished upon req	uest) to the applica	nt.		
A. Project Director					
1) Name	2) Title	3) Address			
Stephen J. DuBois	Chief, Portsmouth Police Department	3 Junkins Aver	1		
			Portsmouth, NH 03801 5) Telephone Number		
4) Signature 5) Telepho		5) Telephone	Number		
1) Signature (10.7572)		610-7572	No.		
X / V		010-7372			
B. Authorized Official					
	2) Title	3) Address			
1) Name John P. Bohenko	Portsmouth City Manager Deputy	One Junkins Avenue			
		Portsmouth, NH 03801			
4) Signature (5) Telephone Number					
1 \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \					
$ X \longrightarrow A$ $M		431-2000	31-2000		

1. Approval Date

March 24, 2014

3. Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement:

\$5,148.00

2. Signature & Title

Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator NH Highway Safety Agency

SCHEDULE A GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

Description of Project

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM/NEED: The City of Portsmouth is home to many restaurants, bars, shops, and businesses. Portsmouth is one of the oldest settlements of the United States. The area was first settled as Strawbery Banke in 1623, and is the sixth oldest town in the United States.

The City of Portsmouth's history and numerous community events attract tens of thousands of people to an already congested downtown. Large crowds of people attend the Chowder Festival, the Annual Market Square Day, the Annual Taste of the Nation at Strawbery Banke, fireworks, the Seacoast Jazz Festival, the Bow Street Fair (craft fair), the Folk and Acoustic Festival, the Arts Festival, and the Blues Festival.

Two consecutive public surveys conducted in the City of Portsmouth by a research group from the University of New Hampshire have identified speeding motorists as the major concern of Portsmouth residents as related to police services.

Excessive speed is a problem and citizen complaints are frequent. Speeding motorists are commuting to and from jobs located in Portsmouth (i.e. Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, Liberty Mutual Insurance, Columbia HCA Hospital, etc.) Monday through Friday from 6:00-10:00 AM and 3:00-7:00 PM or are speeding to events or the many shopping establishments located in Portsmouth Saturday and Sunday from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM. Statistics show that excessive speed contributes to an increase in injury resulted crashes.

Through monitoring citizen complaints, as well as conducting Stealth Stat Surveys, the following streets have been identified as having excessive speeding problems: South Street, Ocean Road, Aldrich Road, Pleasant Street, Islington Street, Lafayette Road, Woodbury Avenue, Maplewood Avenue, Market Street, Elwyn Road, Greenland Road, and Middle Road.

Year	Speed Warnings	Speed Summonses	
2010	1563	239	
2011	736	111	
2012	685	89	

Although statistics show a decrease in speed warnings and speed summonses, this can, in part, be attributed to the fact that the Portsmouth Police Department has made a concerted effort to address the problem of speeding motorists through conducting overtime patrols funded by the NH fighway Safety Agency. Additional funds are needed in order for the police department to continue to establish enforcement efforts. Without this continued effort, additional dedicated enforcement will not be conducted and the infractions will surely increase.

PROPOSED SOLUTION: In an effort to combat the problems being experienced with motor vehicle violations, the Portsmouth Police Department will hire, on an off-duty basis, officers to work one-man overtime enforcement patrols (18 4-hour shifts) on those days and during those times (Monday-Friday 6:00-10:00 AM and 3:00-7:00 PM and Saturday and Sunday from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM) when the violations are felt to be most prevalent. Adherence to all traffic laws, including the state's occupant protection law, will be monitored and enforced. It is understood that these patrols will be conducted on an overtime basis and officers will be paid at their overtime (1.5) rate for work exceeding their normal 40 hours per week. Part-time officers will be paid at their normal hourly rate.

ANTICIPATED RESULTS: Intense enforcement and visibility will result in a continuing perception that the Portsmouth Police Department takes the offense of speeding seriously and vigorously enforces speed limits throughout the city. The goal is to increase the number of motor vehicle stops and to create a high visibility deployment effort on the identified streets. It is anticipated that each four-hour patrol conducted will result in five (5) summonses and ten (10) warnings being issued.

<u>ADDITIONAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS:</u> It is agreed that "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) will be completed for each patrol and submitted to the NH Highway Safety Agency along with requests for reimbursement.

New Hampshire's Child Passenger Safety law is a primary law. A driver should be stopped for violating RSA 265:107-a which requires that all vehicle occupants under the age of 18 riding in a motor vehicle must be restrained and properly fastened in a safety belt and children under the age of 6 must be restrained and properly secured in an approved child passenger safety seat. It is agreed that whenever a stop is made during a patrol supported by this agreement, action will be taken to enforce the state's child passenger safety law.

The recipient of these funds is encouraged to provide programs to encourage the use of safety belts by all drivers and passengers in motor vehicles (23 U.S.C. 1200.11 (a)(d)) and to adopt and enforce seat belt use policies for employees operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles when performing official business.

ee attached Addenda for additional information that is hereby made a part of this contractual agreement.

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

		uy		
State of New Hampshire		Date Received	Proj	ect Number
Aighway Safety Agency		M 1 04 001	4 "20	4 144 024
78 Regional Drive, Building 2		March 24, 201		4-14A-024
Concord, NH 03301		Date Approved	PSP	and Task #
		March 24, 201	4 14-0	1, 01
Part I		Trail City Los		
1. Project Title		2. Type of Applica	tion (Check One)	
1. 110,000 1100	Initial			
Portsmouth "Join the NH Clique" Seat Belt				
·		☐ Continuat	ion	
3. Applicant				
A. Name of Agency and Address		B. Government Un	it (Check One)	
Portsmouth Police Department		State		
3 Junkins Avenue		☐ City/Town	1	
Portsmouth, NH 03801		County	~:£.).	
		Other (spe		**************************************
4. Contract Period	.10 2014	5. Functional Area		Liebayer, Cofet.
Start Date: May Termination Date: May	12, 2014	CFDA #20.600 St		
remmation Date. May	20, 2014	Funding Source National Highway Traffic Safety Administration OP - Occupant Protection		
		or occupantific	- Coulon	
6. Description of Project (Describe in detail	l in Schedule A)			
		ERSONNEL DATA		
Personnel Services OVERTIME SEAT BE JOIN THE NH CLIQUE" (May 12-May 26, 2		MPAIGN		
Salary: 1 officer x 6 patrols x 6 hours/pa			\$2,160.0	
Payroll-related Deductions: \$2,160.00 x 30	percent		648.0	\$2.808.00
*See Proposed Solution (page 2) for exact 1	patrol dates & explanation	on of pay rates		
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
Total				\$2,808.00
Part II				
7. Acceptance of Conditions. It is understo	ood and agreed by the ur	idersigned that a gran	t received as a resul	t of this contract is subject
to the regulations governing grants which h	ave been furnished (or v	will be furnished upor	request) to the app	licant.
A. Project Director				
 	2) Title		3) Address	
1) Name David J. Ferland Stephen J. Dubois	Chief, Portsmouth Po	lice Department	3) Address 3 Junkins Avenu	e
Duria 3. 1 Orlandy	Choi, i originoudi i o	nee Department	Portsmouth, NH	
4) Signature			5) Telephone N	
$\mathcal{C}(\mathcal{C})$			3) Totophone 11	amooi
X .) 427-1500				
B. Authorized Official				
1) Name	2) Title		3) Address	
John Bohenko	Portsmouth City Man	ager, depuny	One Junkins Ave	
DAVIDS, ALLEN	1	1	Portsmouth, NH	
4) Signature			5) Telephone Ni	ımber
NIXU			431-2000	C division of the control of the con
	-		+ 451-2000	. [

Part III (For HSA Use Only)

1. Approval Date

March 24, 2014

2. Signature & Title

Federal Funds Obligated by this
Agreement:
\$ 2,808.00

Peter M. Thomson, Coordinator
NH Highway Safety Agency

Part IV

SCHEDULE A GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

Description of Project

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM/NEED: New Hampshire has a primary child passenger safety law (RSA 265:107-a) that requires all children up to the age of 7 or 57 inches to be restrained and properly secured in an approved child passenger safety seat and that everyone up to the age of 18 use a seat belt. The law up to age 18 has been in effect since August 18, 1997, (16-1/2 years) and has been a primary law since January 1, 2000 (14 years). This is primarily an enforcement issue, not an educational issue.

The state's initial annual seat belt use survey of 3,000 vehicles was conducted in 1984 and revealed that 16.06 percent of New Hampshire drivers were voluntarily buckling up. The current NHTSA-approved annual survey conducted in 2013 indicates that 71.5 percent of all drivers and outboard front seat passengers are buckling up. The state's first child restraint survey conducted in 1989 revealed that 69.84 percent of the 1,500 vehicles surveyed were in compliance with the law. This figure increased to 94.2 percent in 2005. There is a need to increase seat belt usage by all vehicle occupants, and one of the most effective means of accomplishing this goal is through enforcement and education. Although lack of a seat belt law for those 18 years of age and older is an impediment to increasing adult usage, enforcement of the child passenger law (coupled with an aggressive public information campaign) will have a positive effect on adult drivers. An aggressive, statewide campaign utilizing enforcement patrols needs to be conducted during the National "Click It or Ticket" mobilization, as well as during the spring when travel increases due to good weather, holidays (Memorial Day), and year-end school activities.

PROPOSED SOLUTION: In an effort to enforce the state's child passenger safety law and encourage all motor vehicle operators and assengers to use seat belts, the Portsmouth Police Department will hire, on an off-duty basis, an officer to work overtime, stationary, seat belt enforcement patrols in 6-hour shifts, or two-man 3-hour patrols (which are preferred), during daylight hours during the enforcement period. These "Buckle Up! It's the Law Up to 18. Click It or Ticket" patrols will be conducted during the following enforcement periods:

"Join the NH Clique" (May 12-May 26, 2014)

1 officer x 6 patrols

Although the focus of these patrols is to enforce the state's occupant protection law, adherence to all traffic laws will be monitored and enforced. It is understood that these <u>stationary</u> patrols will be conducted on an overtime basis and officers will be paid at their overtime (1.5) rate for work exceeding their normal 40 hours per week. Part-time officers will be paid at their normal hourty rate.

ANTICIPATED RESULTS: As a result of these "Buckle Up! It's the Law Up to 18. Click It or Ticket" and seat belt enforcement patrols, there will be an increase in the number of summonses issued. Drivers will be educated about the life-saving value of child safety seats and seat belts. Aware that the seat belt law is being strictly enforced, driving habits of the motoring public will be positively modified. These overtime patrols will be highly publicized by the NH Highway Safety Agency prior to being conducted, as will be the results of the statewide enforcement and educational campaign.

ADDITIONAL PROJECT CONDITIONS: It is agreed that the "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) reflecting enforcement activity from May 12-May 26, 2014, will be FAXd to the NH Highway Safety Agency no later than June 13, 2014, for the period. It is further agreed that all signed "Overtime Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Report" forms (HS-200) for each patrol, along with a summary "Overtime Reimbursement" form, will be submitted to the NH Highway Safety Agency along with requests for reimbursement.

The recipient of these funds is encouraged to provide programs to encourage the use of safety belts by all drivers and passengers in motor vehicles (23 U.S.C. 1200.11 (a)(d)) and to adopt and enforce seat belt use policies for employees operating company-owned, nted, or personally-owned vehicles when performing official business.

See attached Addenda for additional project information that is hereby made a part of this contractual agreement.

NH Highway Safety Agency 78 Regional Drive, Building #2 Concord, NH 03301-8530 Telephone 603-271-2131

ADDENDUM TO THE APPLICATION FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

<u>PROJECT REPORTS</u>: It is agreed that quarterly reports will be made to the NH Highway Safety Agency for one year summarizing the progress being made in implementing the project and identifying any problems being encountered. A final report will be made upon completion of the project. Monthly reports will be submitted within 20 days of the project termination date.

<u>PROJECT TERMS</u>: All purchases and expenditures under this project will be subject to audit procedures satisfactory to Federal regulations. It is understood that no monies provided under this project will be used for the replacement of any existing equipment which currently meets Federal Highway Safety Standards. If any existing equipment is sold or traded during the project period, in order to reduce the actual outlay of funds for equipment which is provided under this project, the proceeds will be applied in pro-rated amounts to the Federal and local shares of the costs of the project.

<u>PROCUREMENT AND EQUIPMENT COST</u>: State agencies receiving federal funds for the purchase of equipment are required to process orders through the Division of Plant and Property Management in accordance with state regulations. Items of equipment requiring testing and certification to verify their accuracy (i.e. breath testing devices and traffic control radar) must be selected from the State approved devices.

<u>EQUIPMENT</u>: Equipment acquired under this agreement for use in highway safety program areas shall be used and kept in operation for highway safety purposes by the State; or the State, by formal agreement with appropriate officials of a political subdivision or State agency, shall cause such equipment to be used and kept in operation for highway safety purposes (23 CRF 1200.21).

<u>PROJECT INVENTORY</u>: An inventory of each item of equipment having a useful life of more than two years and a cost of five thousand dollars (\$5,000.00) or more will be provided to the NH Highway Safety Agency during the period in which it is in use. Before such equipment is disposed of, either by trade-in or write-off, authorization will be obtained from the Highway Safety Agency, acting as agent for the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.

PROJECT CREDIT: All publications, public information or publicity released in conjunction with this project shall state that "this project is being supported in part through a grant from the NH Highway Safety Agency with federal funds provided by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, US Department of Transportation", or words to that effect.

<u>AUDIT REPORTS</u>: The grantee agrees to provide the NH Highway Safety Agency with a copy of the audit report including this project which was conducted under provisions of Circular A-133 - Audit of State and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.

Certifications and Assurances

Section 402 Requirements (as amended by Pub. L. 112-141)

(a) The Governor is responsible for the administration of the State highway safety program through the NH Highway Safety Agency (NH RSA 238) which has adequate powers and is suitably equipped and organized (as evidenced by appropriate oversight procedures governing such areas as procurement, financial administration, and the use, management, and disposition of equipment) to carry out the program (23) USC 402(b) (1) (A)); (b) The political subdivisions of this State are authorized, under NH RSA 238:6, to carry out within their jurisdictions local highway safety programs which have been approved by the Governor and are in accordance with the uniform guidelines promulgated by the Secretary of Transportation (23 USC 402(b) (1) (B)); (c) At least 40 percent of all Federal funds apportioned to this State under 23 USC 402 for this fiscal year will be expended by or for the benefit of the political subdivision of the State in carrying out local highway safety programs in accordance with 23 USC 402(b) (1) (C), 402(h)(2), unless this requirement is waived in writing; (d) This State's highway safety program provides adequate and reasonable access for the safe and convenient movement of physically handicapped persons, including those in wheelchairs, across curbs constructed or replaced on or after July 1, 1976, at all pedestrian crosswalks throughout the state in accordance with 23 USC 402(b) (1) (D); (e) The State will implement activities in support of national highway safety goals to reduce motor vehicle related fatalities that also reflect the primary data-related crash factors within the State as identified by the State highway safety planning process, including: 1) National law enforcement mobilizations; 2) Sustained enforcement of statutes addressing impaired driving, occupant protection, and driving in excess of posted speed limits; 3) An annual statewide safety belt use survey in accordance with 23 CFR Part 1340 for the measurement of State safety belt use rates; 4) Development of statewide data systems to provide timely and effective data analysis to support allocation of highway safety resources. 5) Coordination of its highway safety plan, data collection, and information systems with the state strategic highway safety plan as defined in section 148 (a). (23 USC 402 (b) (1) (E)); (f) The State shall actively encourage all relevant we enforcement agencies in the State to follow the guidelines established for vehicular pursuits issued by the International Association of Chiefs of Police that are currently in effect. (23 USC 402 (j)). 6) The State will not expend Section 402 funds to carry out a program to purchase, operate, or maintain an automated traffic enforcement system. (23 U.S.C. 402(c)(4).

Page 1 of 5

satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency. g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f) above.

Buy America Act

The subgrantee will comply with the provisions of the Buy America Act (49 U.S.C. 5323(j)) which contains the following requirements: Only steel, iron and manufactured products produced in the United States may be purchased with Federal funds unless the Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestic purchases would be inconsistent with the public interest; that such materials are not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality; or that inclusion of domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more than 25 percent. Clear justification for the purchase of non-domestic items must be in the form of a waiver request submitted to and approved by the Secretary of Transportation.

Political Activity (Hatch Act)

The subgrantee will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

Certification Regarding Federal Lobbving

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-award at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grant, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Restriction on State Lobbving

None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge or influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before any State or local legislative body. Such activities include both direct and indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a State official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct communications with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with customary State practice, even if such communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption of a specific pending legislative proposal.

Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension

In accordance with the provision of 49 CFR Part 29, the State agrees that it shall not knowingly enter into any agreement under its Highway Safety Plan with a person or entity that is barred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in the Section 402 program, unless otherwise authorized by NHTSA. The State further agrees that it will include a clause in all lower tier covered transactions and in solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Instructions for Primary Certification

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below. 2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The rospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, ubpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies vailable to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -- Lower Tier Covered Transactions:

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Policy to Ban Text Messaging While Driving

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership On Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, States are encouraged to: 1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted driving including policies to ban text messaging while driving: a) Company-owned or –rented vehicles, or Government-owned, leased or rented vehicles; or b) Privately-owned when on official Government business or when performing any work on behalf of the Government. 2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such as: a) Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving; and b) Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving.

Environmental Impact

The Governor's Representative for Highway Safety has reviewed the State's Fiscal Year highway safety planning document and hereby declares that no significant environmental impact will result from implementing this Highway Safety Plan. If, under a future revision, this lan will be modified in such a manner that a project would be instituted that could affect environmental quality to the extent that a review and statement would be necessary, this office is prepared to take the action necessary to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 USC 4321 et seq.) and the implementing regulations of the Council on Environmental Quality (40 CFR Parts 1500-1517).

Policy on Seat Belt Use

In accordance with Executive Order 13043, Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States, dated April 16, 1997, the Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees when operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles. The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) is responsible for providing leadership and guidance in support of this Presidential initiative. For information on how to implement such a program, or statistics on the potential benefits and cost-savings to your company or organization, please visit the Buckle Up America section on NHTSA's website at www.nhtsa.dot.gov. Additional resources are available from the Network of Employers for Traffic Safety (NETS), a public-private partnership headquartered in the Washington, DC, metropolitan area, and dedicated to improving the traffic safety practices or employers and employees. NETS is prepared to provide technical assistance, a simple user-friendly program kit, and an award for achieving the President's goal of 90 percent seat belt use. NETS can be contacted at 1 (888) 221-0045 or visit its website at www.trafficsafety.org.

HS-4(a) (3/28/13)

NH Highway Safety Agency 78 Regional Drive, Building #2 Concord, NH 03301-8530 Telephone 603-271-2131

ADDENDUM TO THE APPLICATION FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY PROJECT GRANT

FEDERAL REGULATIONS

2 CFR Part 25 (formerly Circular A-87). This provides principles for determining the allowable costs of programs administered by State, local and federally-recognized Indian tribal governments under grants from and contracts with the Federal Government. They are designed to provide the basis for a uniform approach to the problem of determining costs and to promote efficiency and better relationships between grantees and the Federal Government. The principles are for determining costs only and are not intended to identify the circumstances nor to dictate the extent of Federal and State or local participation in the financing of a particular project. They are designed to provide that federally-assisted programs bear their fair share of costs recognized under these principles except where restricted and prohibited by law.

<u>COMMON RULE (49 CFR Part 18)</u> (Effective October 1988) This rule establishes the Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements and Sub-awards to state and local governments and Indian tribal governments. Administrative rules set forth include:

18.10	Forms for Applying for Grants	18.32	Equipment
18.11	State Plans	18.33	Supplies
18.20	Standards for Financial Management Systems	18.34	Copyrights
18.21	Payment	18.35	Sub-awards to Debarred and Suspended Parties
18.22	Allowable Costs	18.36	Procurement
18.23	Period of Availability of Funds	18.37	Subgrants
18.24	Matching or Cost Sharing	18.40	Monitoring and Reporting Program Performance
18.25	Program Income	18.41	Financial Reporting
18.26	Non-Federal Audits	18.42	Retention and Access Requirements for Records
18.30	Changes	18.50	Closeout
18.31	Real Property		

<u>CIRCULAR A-133</u> (June 1997). This Circular establishes audit requirements for State and local governments that receive Federal aid, and defines Federal responsibilities for implementing and monitoring those requirements.

Further information concerning these Circulars may be obtained by contacting the Financial Management Branch, Budget Review Division, Office of Management & Budget, Washington, DC 20503. Telephone 202-395-4773.

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY & TRANSPARENCY ACT. Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Numbers Requirement. As the recipient of federal highway safety funds, the applicant agency must have a DUNS number. This is a unique nine-character number that identifies the applicant agency and is used by the federal government to track how federal funds are distributed. If the applicant agency is authorized to make sub-awards under this contract, it must: 1) notify potential sub-recipients that no entity may receive a sub-award unless that entity has provided the applicant agency with its DUNS number; and 2) the applicant agency may not make a sub-award to an entity unless the entity has provided its DUNS number to the applicant agency. (http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform)

**IN THE INTEREST OF PERSONAL AND BUSINESS I.D. SECURITY, WE NO LONGER PHOTOCOPY PERSONAL AND BUSINESS CHECKS TO SHOW GRANTS, DONATIONS, ETC. RECEIVED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

1. Donations:

- a. A donation in the amount of \$300 from Mr. Jason Page for two tuition scholarships to the Explorer Cadet Academy.
- b. A donation in the amount of \$300 from Mr. & Mrs. David Brown for two tuition scholarships to the Explorer Cadet Academy.

FY14 YEAR TO DATE SUMMARY March 31, 2014

Appropriated Budget	YTD Expenses and Encumbrances	Available Balance	% of Budget Used
9,174,659	7,046,965	2,127,694	76.81%

Minus Annualized Expenditures

(155,203)	(155,203)	Leave at Termination
(1,379,099)	(1,379,099)	Health Insurance
(126,074)	(126,074)	Workers Compensation

ACTUALS

7,514,283	5,386,589	2,127,694	71.68%
-----------	-----------	-----------	--------

% Through FY	73.08%



TOWN OF WILMINGTON

MASSACHUSETTS



POLICE DEPARTMENT

One Adelaide Street Wilmington, MA 01887

978-658-5071 FAX 978-657-8384

Chief Michael R. Begonis

March 28, 2014

Stephen DuBois, Chief of Police Portsmouth Police Department 3 Junkins Avenue Portsmouth, NH 03081

REC'D APR 2 - 2014

Dear Chief DuBois

On behalf of the Wilmington (MA) Police Department, I would like to thank and commend members of the Portsmouth Police Department who assisted this agency in the pursuit of Robert Reinhart. Robert Reinhart has been charged with numerous counts of Larceny Over, here in Massachusetts. Through the efforts of your Officers, they were able to apprehend Mr. Reinhart and secure valuable evidence, which will not only be utilized in our case, but has led to the identity of additional victims of Reinhart's scheme.

Officers Erik Widerstrom and Garret Drew went out of their way to locate Robert Reinhart. With information that Reinhart may be staying in a Portsmouth Hotel, these Officers checked the local hotels and located and arrested Reinhart, at the Best Western Hotel on February 28, 2014.

Detective Sergeant J. Peracchi authorized and provided additional Portsmouth PD assets to assist this agency and also assigned a detective to assist us in securing a Search Warrant in New Hampshire.

Detective Rochelle Jones was instrumental in obtaining the New Hampshire Search Warrant. She filed her own affidavit using the Wilmington Probable Cause and secured the Search Warrant from Seabrook District Court. She also assisted in securing, documenting and tagging all property recovered during the execution of the Search Warrant. She also obtained all jail call records, logs and recordings and assisted in serving subpoenas to New Hampshire businesses, as a result of this case.

The assistance of the Portsmouth Police Department and these individuals were instrumental in our efforts to prosecute Robert Reinhart here in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Their professionalism is a credit to your agency and they should be commended for their efforts.

Sincerely,

Michael R. Begonis Chief of Police

Wilmington Police Department

Mas Bonne,

thank you for your par begaling.

In that well is between at With our fore, here,

hat who I would not an young to her

authed rack much you!

I walky appreased the your

I walky appreased the your

Thank again, Much

Thank you so much bind stain your eyperionan but cinimals it the Art presentation a think presentation a think every ent bearing cubing the United the for the United the for the Community

Portsmouth Police Department

Page: 1 of 5

	Group A Crimes Against Persons													
Crime IBR Category	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Tota
Kidnaping/ Abduction	2014	1												1
	2013	2	2											4
	Pct	-50%	n/a											-75%
Forcible Rape	2014	3		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	3
	2013		2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2
	Pct	n/a	n/a	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+50%
Forcible Sodomy	2014													
	2013	1	1											2
	Pct	n/a	n/a											n/a
Forcible Fondling	2014													
	2013	2	2											4
	Pct	n/a	n/a											n/a
Aggravated Assault	2014	7	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	9
	2013	3	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	4
	Pct	+133%	+100%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+125%
Simple Assault	2014	20	18	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	38
	2013	21	19	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	40
	Pct	-5%	-5%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	-5%
Intimidation	2014	19	14											33
	2013	11	8											19
	Pct	+73%	+75%										İ	+74%
Statutory Rape	2014	1											ļ	1
	2013								1.					
	Pct	n/a										ļ		n/a
Total Crimes Against Persons	2014	51	34	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	85
	2013	40	35	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	15	75
	Pct	+28%	-3%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+13%

		Filters/Options Applied	
Date Used	Report Date used		

Portsmouth Police Department

Page: 2 of 5

Crime IBR Category	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Total
Robbery	2014													
•	2013	2	5											7
	Pct	n/a	n/a											n/a
Burglary/ Breaking and Entering	2014	3	2											5
	2013	5	7											12
	Pct	-40%	-71%		·									-58%
Larceny (pick-pocket)	2014													
	2013		1											1
	Pct		n/a											n/a
Larceny (purse snatching)	2014		1											1
	2013		1											1
	Pct		0%											0%
Larceny (shoplifting)	2014	10	9	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19
	2013	5	13	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	19	18
	Pct	+100%	-31%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+6%
Larceny (from building)	2014	19	8											27
	2013	15	15											30
	Pct	+27%	-47%											-10%
Larceny (from motor vehicles)	2014	8	8											16
	2013	14	7											21
	Pct	-43%	+14%											-24%
Larceny (of motor vehicle parts)	2014	2												2
	2013	4	2											6
	Pct	-50%	n/a											-67%
Larceny (all other)	2014	6	14	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	20
	2013	13	6	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	19
	Pct	-54%	+133%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+5%
Motor Vehicle Theft	2014		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
	2013	2	3	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	5
	Pct	n/a	-67%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	-80%
Counterfeit/ Forgery	2014	5	2											7
	2013	4	2											6
	Pct	+25%	0%											+17%
Fraud (false pretense;swindle)	2014	6	6											12
	2013	5	7											12
	Pct	+20%	-14%											0%

		Filters/Options Applied	
Date Used	Report Date used		

Portsmouth Police Department

Page: 3 of 5

	Group	A C	rimo	es A	gai	nst	Pro	pert	:у					
Crime IBR Category	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Total
Fraud (credit/debit card;ATM)	2014	2	2											4
	2013	9	4											13
	Pct	-78%	-50%											-69%
Fraud (impersonation)	2014	1												1
	2013	2	2											4
	Pct	-50%	n/a											-75%
Embezziement	2014	1												1
	2013													
	Pct	n/a												n/a
Stolen Property	2014	5	3	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	8
	2013	2	3	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	5
	Pct	+150%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+60%
Destruction of Property/Vandalism	2014	36	19	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	55
	2013	20	23	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	43
	Pct	+80%	-17%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+28%
Total Crimes Against Property	2014	104	75	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	179
	2013	102	101	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	36	203
	Pct	+2%	-26%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	-12%

		Filters/Options Applied	
Date Used	Report Date used		

Portsmouth Police Department

Page: 4 of 5

Crime IBR Category	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Total
Drug/ Narcotic Violations	2014	8	7	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	15
-	2013	4	6	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	10
	Pct	+100%	+17%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+50%
Drug Equipment Violations	2014		2											2
	2013													
	Pct		n/a											n/a
Pornography/Obscene Material	2014													
	2013	1	2											3
	Pct	n/a	n/a											n/a
Prostitution	2014		1											1
	2013	2	1											3
	Pct	n/a	0%											-67%
Weapon Law Violations	2014	3												3
	2013	1	1											2
	Pct	+200%	n/a											+50%
Total Crimes Against Society	2014	11	10	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	21
	2013	8	10	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	18
	Pct	+38%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+17%

Filters/Options Applied							
Date Used	Report Date used						

Portsmouth Police Department

Page: 5 of 5

Group B Crimes														
Crime IBR Category	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	Мау	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Total
Bad Checks	2014													
	2013	1												1
	Pct	n/a												n/a
Disorderly Conduct	2014	8	2	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	10
	2013	2	4	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	6
	Pct	+300%	-50%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+67%
Driving under Influence	2014	3	3	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	6
	2013	3	2	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	5
	Pct	0%	+50%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+20%
Drunkenness	2014	4	13											17
	2013	12	6											18
	Pct	-67%	+117%											-6%
Family Non Violent Offenses	2014	1												1
	2013	3	2											5
	Pct	-67%	n/a											-80%
Liquor Law Violations	2014	3	2											5
	2013	3	1											4
	Pct	0%	+100%											+25%
Runaways (under 18yr old)	2014	3		2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	3
	2013	2	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	3
	Pct	+50%	n/a	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%
Trespass of Real Property	2014	8	3											11
	2013	5	5											10
	Pct	+60%	-40%											+10%
All Other Offenses	2014	41	29	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	70
	2013	23	18	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	23	41
	Pct	+78%	+61%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+71%
Total Group B Crimes	2014	71	52	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	123
	2013	54	39	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	43	93
	Pct	+31%	+33%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	+32%

Filters/Options Applied							
Date Used	Report Date used						